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State of Missouri
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)


vs.

)

No. 09-0897 PO



)

CHARLES EDWARD JOHNSON,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


Charles Edward Johnson is subject to discipline because he committed the criminal offenses of mail fraud and credit card fraud.
Procedure


On June 26, 2009, the Director of the Department of Public Safety filed a complaint seeking to discipline Johnson.  On August 30, 2010, we served Johnson with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail.  Johnson did not file an answer.  

On December 29, 2010, the Director filed a motion for summary decision.  Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.446(5) provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if the Director establishes facts that (a) Johnson does not dispute and (b) entitle the Director to a favorable decision.  We gave Johnson until October 25, 2010, to respond to the motion, but he did not respond.

Findings of Fact

1. Johnson is licensed as a peace officer.  His license was current and active at all relevant times.

2. From November 2003 through August 31, 2005, in Greene County, Missouri, Johnson sent, delivered, and moved through the US Postal Service an envelope addressed to Treslyn Tolbert from Capital One, a billing statement.  Johnson took this action for the purpose of executing a scheme to defraud others of property rights.  Johnson also used three credit card numbers from Capital One and a Paypal account to obtain money and property in excess of $1,000.
3. On October 4, 2007, in the United States District Court for the Western District of Missouri, an indictment was filed against Johnson as follows:

COUNT ONE
On or about between [sic] April 23, 2004, and May 17, 2004, in the Western District of Missouri, CHARLES EDWARD JOHNSON, defendant, for the purpose of executing and attempting to execute the scheme to defraud others of property rights did knowingly cause to be sent, delivered, and moved by the United States Postal Service according to the direction thereon, an envelope addressed to Treslyn Tolbert from Capital One, containing a billing statement, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341 and 2.
COUNT TWO
On or about between [sic] July 11, 2004, and August 9, 2004, in the Western District of Missouri, CHARLES EDWARD JOHNSON, defendant, for the purpose of executing and attempting to execute the scheme to defraud others of property rights did knowingly cause to be sent, delivered, and moved by the United States Postal Service according to the direction thereon, an envelope addressed to Treslyn Tolbert from Capital One, 
containing a billing statement, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341 and 2.
COUNT THREE
On or about between [sic] November 15, 2004, and December 7, 2004, in the Western District of Missouri, CHARLES EDWARD JOHNSON, defendant, for the purpose of executing and attempting to execute the scheme to defraud others of property rights did knowingly cause to be sent, delivered, and moved by the United States Postal Service according to the direction thereon, an envelope addressed to Treslyn Tolbert from Capital One, containing a billing statement, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341 and 2.
COUNT FOUR
Between on or about [sic] January 1, 2004, and continuing until on or about December 31, 2004, in Greene County, in the Western District of Missouri, and elsewhere, CHARLES EDWARD JOHNSON, defendant, knowingly and with intent to defraud used one or more access devices, to wit: three credit card account numbers from Capital One and one account number from PayPal to obtain money and property having an aggregate amount of $1,000 or more, said use affecting interstate commerce, to with Capital One and PayPal do business outside the state of Missouri and some of the transactions involving said accounts affected interstate commerce, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1029(a)(2) and (c)(1)(A)[(i)].
4. On September 4, 2008, Johnson was found guilty of three counts of mail fraud and one count of credit card fraud.  He was sentenced to 15 months’ imprisonment.
Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear the complaint.
  The Director has the burden of proving that Johnson has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.
  The Director argues that there is cause for discipline under § 590.080:

1.  The director shall have cause to discipline any peace officer licensee who:

*   *   *

(2) Has committed any criminal offense, whether or not a criminal charge has been filed[.]


Johnson was convicted of three counts of mail fraud and one count of credit card fraud.  18 U.S.C. § 1341 states:

Whoever, having devised or intending to devise any scheme or artifice to defraud, or for obtaining money or property by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises, or to sell, dispose of, loan, exchange, alter, give away, distribute, supply, or furnish or procure for unlawful use any counterfeit or spurious coin, obligation, security, or other article, or anything represented to be or intimated or held out to be such counterfeit or spurious article, for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice or attempting so to do, places in any post office or authorized depository for mail matter, any matter or thing whatever to be sent or delivered by the Postal Service, or deposits or causes to be deposited any matter or thing whatever to be sent or delivered by any private or commercial interstate carrier, or takes or receives therefrom, any such matter or thing, or knowingly causes to be delivered by mail or such carrier according to the direction thereon, or at the place at which it is directed to be delivered by the person to whom it is addressed, any such matter or thing, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both. If the violation occurs in relation to, or involving any benefit authorized, transported, transmitted, transferred, disbursed, or paid in connection with, a presidentially declared major disaster or emergency (as those terms are defined in section 102 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 5122)), or affects a financial institution, such person shall be fined not more than $1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 30 years, or both.
18 U.S.C. § 2 states:

(a)
Whoever commits an offense against the United States or aids, abets, counsels, commands, induces or procures its commission, is punishable as a principal.

(b)
Whoever willfully causes an act to be done which if directly performed by him or another would be an offense against the United States, is punishable as a principal.
18 U.S.C. Sections 1029(a)(2) and (c)(1)(A)(i) state:

(a) Whoever—

*   *   *
(2) knowingly and with intent to defraud traffics in or uses one or more unauthorized access devices during any one-year period, and by such conduct obtains anything of value aggregating $1,000 or more during that period; . . . shall, if the offense affects interstate or foreign commerce, be punished as provided in subsection (c) of this section.

(c) Penalties.—
(1) Generally.— The punishment for an offense under subsection (a) of this section is—

(A) in the case of an offense that does not occur after a conviction for another offense under this section—

(i) if the offense is under paragraph (1), (2), (3), (6), (7), or (10) of subsection (a), a fine under this title or imprisonment for not more than 10 years, or both[.]

Johnson was convicted of the above referenced crimes.  A conviction collaterally estops the issue of whether the person committed the criminal offense.
  Johnson committed the criminal offenses of mail fraud and credit card fraud.
Summary

Johnson is subject to discipline under § 590.080.2(2).  We grant the motion for summary decision and cancel the hearing.

SO ORDERED on March 3, 2011.




_________________________________



SREENIVASA   RAO   DANDAMUDI



Commissioner

�The Director’s affidavit does not state that the license was active in the past.  This is alleged in the complaint and we accept it as admitted because Johnson did not file an answer.  1 CSR 15-380(7)(C)1.


�Section 621.045.  Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to RSMo Supp. 2010.


�Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).  


�Carr v. Holt, 134 S.W.3d 647, 649 (Mo. App., E.D. 2004) (citing James v. Paul, 49 S.W.3d 678, 682-83 (Mo. banc 2001)).
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